
2023

Annual

MEETING

Florian Gardens  
Conference Center
2340 Lorch Avenue | Eau Claire

November 8–9, 2023Wisconsin Electric 
Cooperative Association

6405 Century Avenue, Suite 102
Middleton, WI 53562-2200

(608) 467-4650
www.weca.coop



11 a.m.– 
3 p.m.

Registration

1–1:30 p.m. WECA 87th Annual Meeting
  Welcome & Introductions 
  Pledge of Allegiance & National Anthem
  Recognition of Veterans & Active-Duty Military
  Call to Order
  Introductions of the WECA Board of Directors
  Secretary-Treasurer’s Report

• Credentials Report
• Proof of Meeting Notice
• Approval of 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes
• 2022–2023 Financial Report

  Resolutions
  Chairman’s Report

1:30– 
2:30 p.m.

The National Security Implications of a 
U.S. Energy Transition
Some U.S. policymakers are proposing an 
industrial strategy/policy to decarbonize the 
world’s largest, most important economy 
and greatest military power and transition 
away from fossil fuels. This presentation will 
speak to the national security implications 
of such a proposition—implications that 
generally are marginalized or dismissed in the 
U.S. energy debate but should be prioritized. 
Two questions will be addressed: If the U.S. 
decarbonizes its economy by transitioning 
away from fossil fuels 1) What will be the 
climate return on that investment, and 
2) Will the U.S. be in a stronger industrial and 
geopolitical position to counter 21st-century 
competitors intent on displacing the U.S. as 
the world’s greatest superpower?

Dr. David Gattie, associate professor of 
engineering, University of Georgia, and 
senior fellow, University of Georgia Center for 
International Trade and Security

2:30– 
2:45 p.m.

Break

2:45– 
3:15 p.m.

NRECA Director Election

Wednesday, November 8, 2023



11 a.m.– 
3 p.m.

Registration

1–1:30 p.m. WECA 87th Annual Meeting
  Welcome & Introductions 
  Pledge of Allegiance & National Anthem
  Recognition of Veterans & Active-Duty Military
  Call to Order
  Introductions of the WECA Board of Directors
  Secretary-Treasurer’s Report

• Credentials Report
• Proof of Meeting Notice
• Approval of 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes
• 2022–2023 Financial Report

  Resolutions
  Chairman’s Report

1:30– 
2:30 p.m.

The National Security Implications of a 
U.S. Energy Transition
Some U.S. policymakers are proposing an 
industrial strategy/policy to decarbonize the 
world’s largest, most important economy 
and greatest military power and transition 
away from fossil fuels. This presentation will 
speak to the national security implications 
of such a proposition—implications that 
generally are marginalized or dismissed in the 
U.S. energy debate but should be prioritized. 
Two questions will be addressed: If the U.S. 
decarbonizes its economy by transitioning 
away from fossil fuels 1) What will be the 
climate return on that investment, and 
2) Will the U.S. be in a stronger industrial and 
geopolitical position to counter 21st-century 
competitors intent on displacing the U.S. as 
the world’s greatest superpower?

Dr. David Gattie, associate professor of 
engineering, University of Georgia, and 
senior fellow, University of Georgia Center for 
International Trade and Security

2:30– 
2:45 p.m.

Break

2:45– 
3:15 p.m.

NRECA Director Election

Wednesday, November 8, 2023 3:15–4 p.m. Self-Administered CPR 
Leveraging his career as a fighter pilot, EMT, 
and professional magician, Reed will leave you 
transfixed during this stimulating presentation. 
Reed will take you into the cockpit and 
through the three core elements of self-
administered CPR using strategic storytelling 
and jaw-dropping magic. Listeners will walk 
away knowing how to remain critical in their 
profession, stay persistent in their endeavors, 
and rally their peers for cohesive growth. 
Let Reed take the controls and use magic to 
smoothly navigate the skies.

Reed “Roller” Barrett, Captain, United States 
Air Force

4–5 p.m. Break and Check Into Hotel

5–6:15 p.m. Awards Reception and Social

Thank You to Awards Reception & Social Sponsor

6:15 p.m. Dinner and Awards Ceremony

2023 RESAP Certifications
    Barron Electric Cooperative
    Bayfield Electric Cooperative
    Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
    Eau Claire Energy Cooperative
    Rock Energy Cooperative
    Scenic Rivers Energy Cooperative
    Taylor Electric Cooperative
    Washington Island Electric Cooperative

2023 Herman C. Potthast Award
    Wendy Fassbind, Wisconsin Electric Cooperative Association

2023 N. F. Leifer Memorial Journalism Award
    Liz Gunderson, Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services

2023 Ally of Cooperative Electrification (ACE) Award
    Dallas Sloan, Barron Electric Cooperative



7–8 a.m. Breakfast Buffet

8–8:45 a.m. Business Meeting (cont.)
   President & CEO Report
   Year in Review Video
   Youth Tour & Youth Leadership Conference Video

8:45–9 a.m. Federated Group Retention Report
J. Keith Johnson, CIC, CPCU, account executive, 
Federated Rural Electric Insurance Exchange

9–9:30 a.m. The Sausage Making of Policy, Politics, 
and PACs: An Open Discussion with 
Your Lobbyists
How do we determine what policies we support 
or oppose? Why do we support some candidates 
and not others? Who makes the decisions on 
where our PAC money goes for contributions? 
Is WECA biased in the positions we take and 
the candidates we support? How does the 
resolutions process work? Jennifer and Rob will 
sit down together to answer these questions 
and many more so that WECA members feel 
empowered and confident that WECA truly is 
a non-partisan, grassroots organization that 
represents its members’ best interests. 

Jennifer Shilling, government relations 
manager, Dairyland Power Cooperative

Rob Richard, vice president of  government 
relations & external affairs, Wisconsin Electric 
Cooperative Association

9:30– 
9:45 a.m.

Break

9:45– 
11 a.m.

Bringing Electricity to the Navajo 
Nation: A Wisconsin Connection
In the first week of May this year, two linemen 
from Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative 
embarked on a mission to help provide power 
to families in the Chinle District in Arizona 
on the Navajo Nation to take part in Light Up 
Navajo Project. This project, and these two 
men, are helping to change lives. This panel 
discussion will further explore the mission to 
electrify an estimated 13,500 homes, or 67,500 
American citizens, who still to this day live

Thursday, November 9, 2023



(cont.) without electricity on the Navajo Nation. Listen 
to their stories, get a better understanding of 
the impact the project is having, and share in 
the mission of bringing electricity and hope to 
thousands of our fellow Americans.

Jarrett Brow, lineman, Central Wisconsin Electric 
Cooperative 

Jeff Haas, senior vice president, membership and 
education, American Public Power Association 

Walter Haase, general manager, Navajo Tribal 
Utility Authority

Kevin Kurtzweil, vice president of operations, 
Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative

Alex Lutz, apprentice lineman, Central Wisconsin 
Electric Cooperative

Moderator: Julie Lund, director of news and 
communication, Wisconsin Electric Cooperative 
Association

11– 
11:15 a.m.

Break

11:15 a.m.–
12 p.m.

Is Rural Wisconsin Ready for the 
Broadband Boom? 
It was announced earlier this year that Wisconsin 
is set to receive nearly $1.1 billion through 
the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law’s Broadband 
Equity, Access, and Deployment (BEAD) 
Program. The two agencies, NTIA and PSC of 
Wisconsin, that are largely responsible for 
making sure the guidelines are established and 
the program is ready to support the broadband 
buildout will take a deeper dive into the details 
and timeline of the program to make sure you 
have the information you need to make the best 
decisions for your service territory.  

Carah Koch, federal program officer (WI), 
Office of Internet Connectivity & Growth (OICG), 
National Telecommunications and Information 
Administration

Alyssa Kenney, Wisconsin broadband and digital 
equity director, Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin

12–
12:10 p.m.

WECA Closing Business Session
Director Awards
Seating of 2023–24 WECA Board of Directors
Adjournment

 



The Rural Electric Safety Achievement Program (RESAP) 
is centered on two fundamental principles that are 
essential to achieving safety excellence. Each cooperative 
embraces safety as a core value, and its employees and 
leadership take ownership of the systems that create a 
safe working environment. All 23 electric distribution 
cooperatives in Wisconsin participate in RESAP.

This voluntary program requires a formal commitment 
by each co-op’s leadership: Adoption of a Safety 
Improvement Plan (SIP), reporting annual performance 
measures, and periodic on-site evaluations of safety and 
compliance program criteria.

Certification is not pass or fail; it acknowledges a co-op’s 
commitment to continuous improvement. This philosophy 
allows on-site evaluators to provide honest and candid 
feedback and recommendations. Inspections and 
verification of certain safety documents help cooperatives 
better understand their strengths and weaknesses, the 
critical first step in implementing any SIP. The SIP is a key 
function of the RESAP program, which involves a safety 
committee, employees, and the board to implement and 
track safety initiatives derived from input by all employees.

2023 RESAP Certifications
Barron Electric Cooperative

Bayfield Electric Cooperative

Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative

Eau Claire Energy Cooperative

Rock Energy Cooperative

Scenic Rivers Energy Cooperative

Taylor Electric Cooperative

Washington Island Electric Cooperative

RESAP
Recognition



RESAP
Recognition

Wendy Fassbind
Wisconsin Electric 
Cooperative Association

The Job Training & Safety (JT&S) 
Committee has selected WECA Director 
of Education and Events Wendy Fassbind 
to be the recipient of the 2023 Herman C. 
Potthast Award for outstanding service, 

dedication, leadership, and cooperation with an emphasis 
on safety. Fassbind has been with the statewide for nearly 23 
years and has held her current position for a decade, where 
she has been instrumental in growing and expanding WECA 
education and safety program offerings.

“Her hard work, dedication, care, and compassion for her 
co-op family is second to none. We are all benefactors 
of the work she does for our professional development 
that ultimately enhances our co-op safety and mutual aid 
programs,” the Wisconsin REC Superintendents’ Association 
nomination letter reads. 

In her role, Fassbind engages operations staff to develop 
and implement OSHA training, organizes and schedules 
the JT&S and ROPE meetings, works with the Wisconsin REC  
Superintendent’s Association to develop safety programs 
including content and speakers, and assists with regional 
mutual aid responses by securing basic needs for lineworkers 
in the field and on the road.

She was very involved with the recovery following Hurricane 
Katrina and Irma when she worked tirelessly to secure 
transportation and lodging for lineworkers helping to restore 
power in the storm-ravaged states of Louisiana and Florida.

“While Wendy doesn’t likely recognize the significance of her 
contributions to our safety programs, it is awards like these 
that are meant for that purpose—to let people like Wendy 
know that their contributions are significant and greatly 
appreciated, and it is why she is worthy of this award,” the 
nomination reads.

About the Award: The Herman C. Potthast Award is named 
for a state and national leader who was instrumental in 
implementing and promoting instruction and training 
to ensure safety among those working in the electric 
cooperative field. Potthast died in 1972. The award was 
created in 1973 and is presented annually.

2023 Herman C. 
Potthast Award 



Liz Gunderson
Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services 

Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services was 
chosen as the recipient of the 2023 
N.F. Leifer Memorial Journalism Award, 
bestowed upon the co-op adjudged to 
have had the strongest overall local pages 
in the Wisconsin Energy Cooperative News 

over the previous 12 months. Serving as local editor of Pierce 
Pepin’s pages is Liz Gunderson, communications coordinator.

This is Pierce-Pepin’s first-ever Leifer award since the local-pages 
contest was established in 1966, although the cooperative has 
won three individual category awards since Gunderson became 
the co-op’s local-pages editor 2017.

Gunderson has served in member relations and IT 
administration at Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services since 
2001. In her current role, she oversees all of the cooperative’s 
communications functions. Among her recent accomplishments 
is initiating Pierce Pepin’s successful partnership with the Dolly 
Parton Imagination Library, a program that Gunderson oversees. 

The Leifer Award is determined by a different independent 
judge each year, always a communications professional and 
usually one with a co-op background. The judge evaluates a 
sampling of each of the 19 individualized local sections within 
the magazine, produced by staff at each co-op and filled with 
information unique to each co-op.

Judging the 2022–2023 contest was Allison Jenkins, co-owner 
and editorial director of Mill Creek Communication Services, 
which offers communication resources to a variety of clients, 
particularly those in agriculture, conservation, and cooperatives. 

In selecting Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services as this year’s 
Leifer Award winner, Jenkins said, “GREAT mix of features on 
community subjects, updates on fiber projects, co-op news/
events, and energy education. I felt like this co-op had the most 
appealing pages with a solid mix of writing, content, and visual 
appeal.”

About the Award: The N.F. Leifer Memorial Journalism Award is 
named for former Vernon Electric Cooperative manager Norman 
F. “Lefty” Leifer, who was instrumental in launching what was 
then known as the Wisconsin REA News in 1940.

2023 N.F. Leifer Memorial 
Journalism Award 



2023 N.F. Leifer Memorial 
Journalism Award 

Dallas Sloan
Barron Electric Cooperative

Dallas Sloan, longtime community and 
cooperative leader and former head of 
Barron Electric Cooperative, has been 
named the recipient of the 2023 Ally of 
Cooperative Electrification (ACE) Award, 
WECA’s highest honor. Sloan started his 

career at Barron Electric as a staff assistant in 1984 and retired 
in 2009 after more than 12 years as general manager.

Sloan served on the WECA board of directors from 2015–2021, 
and played a key role in establishing WECA’s independence 
from Cooperative Network and laying the foundation for the 
current organization. He has been a leading member of ACRE 
(now America’s Electric Cooperative PAC) since 2001.

During his time at Barron Electric, Sloan was instrumental in 
lobbying state and federal lawmakers on behalf of electric 
co-op interests, worked vigilantly to ensure emergency 
management funds are available to electric co-ops, and 
spearheaded efforts to protect the Monarch butterfly. He also 
worked to open up the co-op headquarters for a drive-thru 
vaccine clinic during the pandemic.

Sloan was an early and strong supporter of clean energy, 
overseeing the co-op’s installation of a 100-kW community 
solar array in 2014. In 2018, under Sloan’s leadership, Barron 
Electric became the first electric cooperative in the Dairyland 
Power Cooperative to lease an all-electric vehicle and 
promote EV technology.

Sloan also has a long history of community involvement in 
economic development, education, and youth programs.

 Dallas Sloan and his wife, Diane, have three children—
Andrew, David, and Hannah.

About the Award: The Ally of Cooperative Electrification 
(ACE) Award is the highest honor presented annually by the 
Wisconsin Electric Cooperative Association. It recognizes 
individuals who have demonstrated outstanding support 
and service to the industry on behalf of Wisconsin electric 
cooperatives and the members they serve.

2023 Ally of Cooperative 
Electrification Award



CoBank
6340 S. Fiddlers Green Cir. | Greenwood Village, CO 80111

Aaron Johnson, Vice President, Electric Distribution
Phone: (303) 740-4310
AJohnson@cobank.com
www.cobank.com

Today, over 75% of electric distribution, transmission, 
and generation cooperatives work with CoBank for their 
banking and financial needs. We finance electric cooperative 
projects of all kinds, including smart grid technology, retail 
broadband, DER investment, renewables, electric vehicles, 
and more. We also have extensive experience working 
in coordination with government loan programs and 
facilitating the process on behalf of our customers. 

Federated Rural Electric Insurance Exchange
2144 270th Avenue | Cushing, WI 54006

J. Keith Johnson, CIC, CPCU, Account Executive
Phone: (913) 568-0252
Fax: (913) 541-2884
KJohnson@federatedrural.com
www.federatedrural.com

Federated is member-owned and is the leading provider 
of property and casualty insurance for rural electric utilities 
in 45 states. We understand the challenges you face 
and our goal is to give you more than just the financial 
strength and stability that you expect from your insurance 
carrier. We also work to help our members control risk 
and reduce accidents. All underwriting, claims services, 
and administrative functions are handled in-house. This 
unique position allows Federated to provide unparalleled 
service at an affordable cost. Contact us to learn more 
about the benefits of membership in Federated.

Thank You to Our Sponsors



Fredrikson
44 East Mifflin Street, Suite 1000 | Madison, WI 53703

Jessica Shrestha, Officer
Phone: (608) 441-3839
jshrestha@fredlaw.com 
www.fredlaw.com 

Fredrikson is a leading Midwest law firm working 
collaboratively to help businesses achieve their goals 
regionally, nationally, and globally, and has a long history 
of assisting clients in the energy industry. Our experienced 
attorneys practice in renewable energy, utility, transmission, 
oil and gas, pipeline, carbon markets, and advanced biofuels 
sectors. Our Madison team provides depth and experience 
in energy, land use, real estate, environmental, cooperatives, 
administrative law, and litigation. We represent clients in the 
energy industry, including electric utilities and cooperatives, 
renewable energy developers, natural gas, and other 
participants in the energy and telecommunications sectors.

Heartland Credit Union
5325 High Crossing Boulevard | Madison, WI 53718

Angela Hanson, President/CEO
Phone: (800) 362-3944
Fax: (608) 282-7036
www.heartlandcu.org

Heartland Credit Union is a financial cooperative that’s been 
serving member-owners and businesses since 1936. We focus 
on small to medium-sized businesses and co-ops by providing 
personal attention that builds long-term relationships for new 
and growing local businesses. 
  
Heartland is proud to be the banking partner of the Wisconsin 
Electric Cooperative Association. A team of experienced 
business bankers provides specialized services to support 
the changing needs of all our business members. Heartland 
is a top choice for business checking, loans, and merchant 
services. Add value to employee benefits packages with 
customized credit union benefits for your employees, too! The 
latest, easy to use digital banking services, online chat, call 
center, and mobile app, allow business members and their 
employees to access Heartland Credit Union—THEIR credit 
union—wherever they are! 

Thank You to  Our Sponsors



Thank You to  Our Sponsors
National Rural Utilities 
Cooperative Finance Corporation
20701 Cooperative Way | Dulles, VA 20166

Amanda Seger, Regional Vice President
Phone: (612) 352-6148
amanda.seger@nrucfc.coop
www.nrucfc.coop

Created and owned by America’s electric cooperative 
network, CFC—a nonprofit finance cooperative with more 
than $31 billion in assets—provides unparalleled industry 
expertise, flexibility, and responsiveness to serve the 
needs of almost 1,000 member-owners across 50 states. 
Governed by a 23-member board made up exclusively of 
electric cooperative directors and executives, CFC helps our 
member-owners attain their business, financial, and strategic 
objectives through customized loan products, investment 
options, financial tools, and training.

National Information Solutions Cooperative
One Innovation Circle | Lake St. Louis, MO 63367

Brian Farmer, Account Manager
Phone: (866) 999-6472
Fax: (701) 667-1936
brian.farmer@nisc.coop
www.nisc.coop

NISC is an information technology cooperative that 
develops, implements, and supports software and 
hardware solutions for more than 900 independent 
broadband companies, electric cooperatives and public 
power entities across the U.S. NISC is an industry leader 
providing information technology enterprise solutions 
including financials, service, operations, and marketing as 
well as customer engagement apps and business services 
such as cybersecurity and printing/mailroom. 



NRTC
2121 Cooperative Way, Suite 600 | Herndon, VA 20171

Mark Davis, Senior Regional Business Manager
Phone: (703) 464-5265
mdavis@nrtc.coop
www.nrtc.coop

NRTC is member driven and technology focused. We 
provide solutions that help our 1,500 electric and 
telephone members bring today’s evolving technology to 
rural America. NRTC’s solutions are developed specifically 
to meet the needs of rural utilities and their customers, 
and include integrated smart grid/utility solutions, 
advanced energy, broadband infrastructure and managed 
network services, wireless technologies, and programming 
distribution capabilities for video and broadband providers.

Rural Electric Supply Cooperative (RESCO)
2250 Pinehurst Drive | Middleton, WI 53562

Matt Brandrup, President & CEO
Phone: (800) 356-9370
Fax: (608) 831-7294 
www.resco1.com

The Rural Electric Supply Cooperative (RESCO) is a 
member-owned and nonprofit electrical wholesaling 
cooperative serving rural electric cooperatives in the Upper 
Midwest. RESCO assists its members in helping to procure 
distribution and transmission electric utility supplies 
at very low and competitive prices. RESCO has been in 
business since 1936 and is governed by a 16-member 
board comprised of electric cooperative directors and 
executives. 

Thank You to  Our Sponsors



Thank You to  Our Sponsors

Weld Riley, S.C.
3624 Oakwood Hills Parkway | Eau Claire, WI 53701

John Behling, President
Phone: (715) 839-7786
Fax: (715) 839-8609 
www.weldriley.com

For two decades, Weld Riley has proudly served Wisconsin’s 
electric cooperatives. Our offices in Eau Claire, Wausau, 
Menomonie, and Black River Falls provide seamless access 
for our cooperative clients. Our twenty-six (26) experienced 
attorneys excel in numerous areas, encompassing 
cooperative law, labor and employment, real estate, land 
use, environmental law, and litigation. 

Weld Riley’s dedication to electric cooperative clients 
goes beyond expertise; it is ignited by a profound passion 
for their unique needs. We understand the urgency of 
their challenges and stand ready to deliver swift, tailored 
solutions. We take immense pride in our commitment 
to providing outstanding legal counsel and unwavering 
support to our cooperative partners. 



Wisconsin Electric 
Cooperative Association

6405 Century Avenue, Suite 102
Middleton, WI 53562-2200

(608) 467-4650
www.weca.coop



 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING 
WISCONSIN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION 

Florian Gardens Conference Center 
2340 Lorch Ave, Eau Claire, Wisconsin 

 
Wednesday, November 8, 2023 & Thursday, November 9, 2023 

 
Pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors, I hereby call and give notice of the 2023 
Annual Meeting of the members of the Wisconsin Electric Cooperative Association, to be held 
at the Florian Gardens Conference Center, 2340 Lorch Ave, Eau Claire, Wisconsin, on 
Wednesday, November 8, 2023 & Thursday, November 9, 2023. The meeting will begin on 
November 8 at 1:00 p.m. with the business meeting. 

 
Action will be taken on the following items of business: 
 
1. Reports of Officers, Directors, and Employees 
2. Review of the FY 2022-2023 Financials and 2023-2024 Budget 
3. Resolutions 
4. Seating of Directors 
5. Such other business as may come before the meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WISCONSIN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION 
 

David Hischke, Chairman 
Dated: October 19, 2023 

 
 



-1- 
 

Wisconsin Electric Cooperative Association 
Minutes of Annual Meeting Business Session 

November 15–16, 2022 
Holiday Inn and Suites 

Stevens Point, Wisconsin 
 

Call to Order The meeting was called to order by Chairman David Hischke at 4:24 p.m. 

Credentials Roger Wiff reported that 147 directors and employees were in attendance, representing 25 
cooperatives and constituting a quorum. 
 

Secretary's 
Report 

Wiff presented the minutes of the November 9, 2021 annual meeting. A motion was made and 
seconded to dispense with the reading and approve the minutes. Motion carried. 
 

Treasurer’s 
Report 

Wiff reviewed the 2021–2022 WECA Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Activities. 
A motion was made and seconded to accept the financial report by unanimous consent. Motion 
carried. 
 

Resolutions Chairman Hischke stated that WECA would be following the NRECA voting format for consent of 
resolutions. Any motions from the floor would have three minutes to speak and two minutes 
for any rebuttal.  
 
Committee Chair Jennifer Baudette stated proposed changes to the resolutions. 
 
A motion was made to approve the changes to resolution B-13 and the addition of E-13 and 
E-14. Motion carried.  
 
Proposed Changes to Resolution E-12: 
The locks and dams on the nation's inland waterways are an integral part of the nation's 
transportation infrastructure. Most of the locks and dams operated by the Army Corps of 
Engineers on the Mississippi River are over 50-years old and approaching the end of their useful 
life. Even though modernization or rehabilitation of the system is needed, efforts to improve 
the lock system have been met with resistance. 
 
WECA supports a multi-purpose use of the Mississippi River, including a balanced approach that 
incorporates the value of environmental, energy generation, recreational, and commercial 
purposes. WECA supports lock modernization and, when necessary, lock expansion, to ease 
traffic congestion, and streamline shipping procedures.  
 
WECA supports funding for the inland waterway system, reflective of the monies contributed by 
inland users and of the importance of this system to our nation’s economic health and security. 
 
A motion was made from the floor by Ed Hass to amend resolution E-12. The motion was 
seconded. Motion carried.  
 
Baudette asked for a moment of silence to recognize those members whom we lost in 2022. 
 



-2- 
 

 
Chairman’s 
Report 

Board Chair David Hischke state “What a year this has been.” Hischke talked about the plan to 
purchase a building in Middleton to house the WECA headquarters and the expected savings it 
will bring. 
 

Manager’s 
Report 

WECA Vice President of Operations Tim Clay presented the manager’s report, including a review 
of how the organization is taking on major challenges including third-party ownership of solar 
installations, and he thanked the WECA staff for stepping up in the absence of WECA President 
and Steve Freese, who has been on medical leave since his cancer diagnosis in June 2022.  
 

Seating of 
Directors 

Hischke introduced the 2022–2023 WECA Board members: 
 
District 1 – Craig Buros, Barbara Miller, and Dan Hillberry.  
District 2 – Dan Smrekar, Jerry Sorenson, and Roger Wiff 
District 3 – Steve Johnson, Justin Jahnz, and Cynthia Thorman 
District 4 – David Hischke, Karen Newbury, and Mike Wade  
 
A motion was made and seconded to seat the above directors. Motion carried. 
 

Adjournment A motion was made and seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 
12:18 p.m.  

 



WISCONSIN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
September 1, 2022 – August 31, 2023

2023 2022
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,202,161$      1,523,877$      
Accounts Receivable 91,924  50,565    
Prepaid Expenses 43,075  60,792    

Total Current Assets 1,337,160        1,635,234        

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 200,308           -          
Building and Building Improvements 279,014           -          
Furniture and Fixtures 41,038  35,022    
Computer Equipment 51,370  51,370    
Vehicles 89,920  85,265    

Total 661,650           171,657  
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (147,521)          (163,231)          

Total Property and Equipment 514,129           8,426      

OPERATING RIGHT-OF-USE ASST, NET 51,819     -

INVESTMENTS
Investment in Associated Organization 1,216    1,276      
Marketable Securities 223,964           220,643  

225,180           221,919  Total Investments!

Total Assets 2,128,288$      1,865,579$      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
206,624$         80,697$           

777       3,093      
1,452        -

129,236           194,540  
8,379    51,223    

52,941 -          

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Related Benefits and Taxes
Current Portion of Loans Payable
Deferred Revenue
Other Accrued Expenses
Lease Liability - Operating, Current
Sales Tax Payable 93         189         

Total Current Liabilities 399,502           329,742  

Loans Payable, Net of Current Portion 92,615  -          
Total Liabilities 492,117 329,742

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 1,528,159        1,415,254        
With Donor Restrictions 108,012           120,583  

Total Net Assets 1,636,171        1,535,837        

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 2,128,288$      1,865,579$      



Income Budget Variance

1,402,228$           1,400,253$            1,975$              
522,269$               414,167$               108,102$         
108,975$               92,200$                  16,775$            
647,940$               635,584$               12,356$            

1,417,026$           1,413,225$            3,801$              
11,846$                 7,920$   3,926$              
22,236$                 8,545$   13,691$            
17,000$                 ‐$   17,000$            
(3,679)$                  ‐$   (3,679)$             

4,145,840$           3,971,894$            173,946$         

Expense Budget Variance

1,446,100$           1,521,836$            (75,736)$          
355,566$               291,554$               64,012$            
586,933$               586,936$               (3)$  
71,301$                 77,194$                  (5,893)$             
157,044$               157,856$               (812)$                
36,635$                 33,296$                  3,339$              
45,826$                 28,417$                  17,409$            
47,828$                 56,154$                  (8,326)$             
25,138$                 17,236$                  7,902$              
17,365$                 16,361$                  1,004$              
1,325$   1,473$   (148)$                

207,386$               166,363$               41,023$            
3,171$   300$   2,871$              
73,894$                 ‐$   73,894$            
845,973$               903,777$               (57,804)$          
6,559$   5,025$   1,534$              
9,125$   6,197$   2,928$              

49,178$                 48,186$                  992$                 

Member Dues
Programs (Skill Builder & Youth Programs)

Meetings (Annual, District, & Sponsorships)
Contracts & Expense Reimbursement 
Wis. Energy Cooperative News  Advertising & Subscription 
Interest Income

Miscellaneous (rent income, work comp retention)
Gain on Sale of Vehicle
Unrealized Investment Loss

Total Income

Personnel

Programs (Skill Builder & Youth Programs)

Contracts

Meeting (Annual, District, & Legislative)
Rent

Office Expenses
Director Fees & Charges
Travel & Car Repairs
Depreciation

Insurance

Taxes and Fees
Professional Services (legal, audit, IT, consultants) 
Interest Expense
New Office Expenses (closing costs, dues, improvements) 
Wis. Energy Cooperative News

Annual report
Promotion and Publicity
Memberships and Donations
Registration Fees 13,352$                 9,544$   3,808$              
Subscriptions (IT licenses, cloud services, media subscriptions) 33,585$                 33,583$                  2$  
Advisory Committee 6,262$   5,300$   962$                 

Total Expense 4,039,547$           3,966,588$            72,960$            

Net Margin Including Gains/ Unrealized Losses 106,293$              

Net Margin Excluding Gains/ Unrealized Losses 92,972$                 5,306$   87,666$            

WISCONSIN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Excluding Donor Accounts) 

September 1, 2022 – August 31, 2023



2023 WECA Board of Directors 

David Hischke, Chairman 
   13674 County Rd M 

Suring, WI 54174-9542 
Phone: (920) 590-0126 
Email:  dhischke@ocontoelectric.com 

   District 4: Oconto Electric Cooperative 

Dan Smrekar 
P.O. Box 387 

   Millston, WI 54643-0387 
Phone: (715) 299-5350 
Email: dsmrekar@jackelec.com 
District 2: Jackson Electric Cooperative 

Karen Newbury, Vice Chairman 
   W9794 State Hwy 70 

Park Falls, WI 54552-8812 
Phone: (715) 762-3840 
Email:  knewbury@price-electric.com 
District 4:  Price Electric Cooperative 

Monica Obrycki 
8214 US Hwy 12 
Fall Creek, WI 54742-0368 
Phone: (715) 832-1603 
Email: mobrycki@ecec.com 
District 2: Eau Claire Energy Cooperative 

Roger Wiff, Secretary/Treasurer 
N8384 510th St. 
Spring Valley, WI 54767-7814 
Phone: (715) 684-2002 
Cell: (715) 821-3526  
Email:  rwiff@piercepepin.coop 

   District 2: Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services 

Steve Johnson 
 N388 Eau Claire Ave 

    New Auburn, WI 54757-8937 
    Phone: (715) 967-2640 
    Email: sljlmj@citizens-tel.net 

 District 3: Chippewa Valley Electric Cooperative 

Craig Buros, Executive Committee 
110 Saugstad Rd. 
Westby, WI 54667-8426 
Phone: (608) 634-3121 

   Email: cburos@vernonelectric.org  
District 1: Vernon Electric Cooperative 

Justin Jahnz 
PO Box 39 

   Braham, MN 
   Phone: (800) 254-7944 
   Email: justin.jahnz@ecemn.com 
   District 3: East Central Energy  

Robert Cornell 
1157 Main Rd. 
Washington Island, 54246-9009
Phone: (920-847-2541
Email:  robert@wiecoop.com
District 4: Washtingon Island Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. 

Cynthia Thorman 
 827 218th St. 

    Osceloa, WI 54020-4519 
    Phone: (715) 755-2692 
    Email: cthorman@polkburnett.com 

 District 3: Polk-Burnett Electric Cooperative 

Dan Hillberry 
15231 Hillberry Ln. 

   Blue River, WI 53518-4978 
Phone: (608) 537-2301 
Email: dhillberry@rec.coop 
District 1: Richland Electric Cooperative 

Chuck Simmons, invited observer 
63476 Lohman Ln. 
Eastman, WI 54626-8711 
Phone: (608) 778-4468 
Email: cmsimmons@neitel.net 

   Scenic Rivers Energy Cooperative 
   NRECA Director 

Barbara Miller 
   9925 County Road M 

Edgerton, WI 53534-8520 
Phone: (608) 345-5326 
Email:  millerbarbarabobbie@gmail.com 
District 1:  Rock Energy Cooperative 

mailto:millerbarbarabobbie@gmail.com


2022 WECA Board Committees 
 
Executive Committee 
David Hischke 
Karen Newbury  
Roger Wiff 
Craig Buros  
Mike Wade 
 
Finance Committee 
Roger Wiff, Chair 
Steve Johnson 
Dan Hillberry 
Barbara Miller 
 
 
WECA Board Term-Limits 
 

Director Position Seat Up for 
Election Currently Held By Elected to Terms 

District 1, Director-Director 2024 Barbara Miller Nov. 2021 
District 1, Director-Director 2025 Dan Hillberry Jan. 2020 
District 1, Manager-Director 2023 Craig Buros Jan. 2020 
District 2, Director-Director 2025 Roger Wiff Nov. 2019 
District 2, Director-Director 2024 Dan Smrekar Nov. 2021 
District 2, Manager-Director 2023 Jerry Sorenson Nov. 2019 
District 3, Director-Director 2025 Cynthia Thorman Nov. 2022 
District 3, Director-Director 2023 Steve Johnson Jan. 2021 
District 3 Manager-Director 2024 Justin Jahnz Nov. 2021 
District 4, Director-Director 2024 Karen Newbury Nov. 2019, Nov. 2021 
District 4, Director-Director 2023 David Hischke Nov. 2017, Nov. 2020 
District 4, Manager-Director 2025 Mike Wade Nov. 2019 
 



CREDENTIALED COOPERATIVE DIRECTOR (CCD) PROGRAM 

Louis Oppor, Central Wisconsin Electric Coopera�ve 
Michael Schultz, Central Wisconsin Electric Coopera�ve 
Dany Liske, Chippewa Valley Electric Coopera�ve 
Rachel Kummer, Dunn Energy Coopera�ve 
Dennis Langenberg, Oconto Electric Coopera�ve 
Mitchell Meives, Price Electric Coopera�ve 
Donald Huffman, Richland Electric Coopera�ve 
Theresa Huber, Rock Energy Coopera�ve 
Todd Thompson, Rock Energy Coopera�ve 
Lawrence Hall, St. Croix Electric Co-op 
Lisa Kohn, Taylor Electric Coopera�ve 
Michael Paulsrud, Vernon Electric Coopera�ve 

BOARD LEADERSHIP CERTIFICATE (BLC) 

Jeff Monson, Richland Electric Coopera�ve 
Calvin Sebranek, Richland Electric Coopera�ve 
Gary Dvoracek, Riverland Energy Coopera�ve 
Dennis Frame, Riverland Energy Coopera�ve 
Brian Hallgren, Taylor Electric Coopera�ve 

Director Gold Creden�al (DGC) 

Michael Baker, Barron Electric Coopera�ve 
Lee Lehrer, Central Wisconsin Electric Coopera�ve 
Tom Smith, Central Wisconsin Electric Coopera�ve 
John Petska, Chippewa Valley Electric Coopera�ve 
James Hager, Clark Electric Coopera�ve 
Judith Anibas, Eau Claire Energy Co-op 
Jeffrey Frieburg, Eau Claire Energy Co-op 
Frank Neibauer, Eau Claire Energy Co-op 
Gary Woods, Jackson Electric Coopera�ve 
Myron Brooks, Jump River Electric Coopera�ve 
Jane Reich, Jump River Electric Coopera�ve 
Sandra Schara, Jump River Electric Coopera�ve 
Brian Berg, Pierce Pepin Coopera�ve Services 
Ginny Huber, Pierce Pepin Coopera�ve Services 
Daniel Reis, Pierce Pepin Coopera�ve Services 
Karen Newbury, Price Electric Coopera�ve 
David Paudler, Riverland Energy Coopera�ve 
Clark Schoonover, Rock Energy Coopera�ve 
Charles Zenner, Taylor Electric Coopera�ve 
David Dregne, Vernon Electric Coopera�ve 
Bernadine Hornby, Vernon Electric Coopera�ve 



2023 WECA COMMITTEE MEMBERS
EDUCATION COMMITTEE   
Bill Amery Jump River Electric Cooperative  
Russ Bailey Bayfield Electric Cooperative 
Trevor Clark Richland Electric Cooperative
Randy Cook Barron Electric Cooperative
Les Dokkestul Jackson Electric Cooperative
Frank Draxler Chippewa Valley Electric Cooperative 
Dave Dregne Vernon Electric Cooperative
Don Everhard Taylor Electric Cooperative
Patty Fetting Dairyland Power Cooperative
Bill Gnesier Adams-Columbia Electric Cooperative
Mary Lou Glasser St. Croix Electric Cooperative
Kriss Krause Oconto Electric Cooperative
Randy Kunsch Price Electric Cooperative
Lee Lehrer Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
Charity Lubich Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services
Judy Mims Scenic Rivers Energy Cooperative
Lori Patoka* Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
Deana Protz Oakdale Electric Cooperative
Tom Schwartz Eau Claire Energy Cooperative 
Herman Seebandt Clark Electric Cooperative 
Dean Stokke Dunn Energy Cooperative
Cindy Thorman Polk-Burnett Electric Cooperative
Jeni Thorpe* Eau Claire Energy Cooperative
Marian Trescher Rock Energy Cooperative
Bea Zingscheim Riverland Energy Cooperative 

JT&S COMMITTEE    
Curt Brockway          Richland Electric Cooperative 
Jon Congdon Adams-Columbia Electric Cooperative
Robert Cornell          Washington Island Electric Cooperative 
Rob Dooley St. Croix Electric Cooperative
Gary Dvoracek Riverland Energy Cooperative
Jason Evenson Polk-Burnett Electric Cooperative
Dee Fox Dunn Energy Cooperative
Jeff Frieburg Eau Claire Energy Cooperative
Kraig Gay Jump River Electric Cooperative
Ryan Kenealy Dairyland Power Cooperative
Chris Kopel Bayfield Electric Cooperative
Pete Leibel East Central Energy
Dan Liske Chippewa Valley Electric Cooperative
Steve Lucas Scenic Rivers Energy Cooperative
Wade Matyka Taylor Electric Cooperative
Mitch Meives Price Electric Cooperative
John Ollendick Oakdale Electric Cooperative
Jack Pardy Oconto Electric Cooperative
Brad Ristow Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services
Mike Ruff Clark Electric Cooperative
Kendal Schmidt** Chippewa Valley Technical College
Mark See Vernon Electric Cooperative 
Tom Smith Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
Eric Steien Jackson Electric Cooperative
Chris Tullar Rock Energy Cooperative

JT&S APPRENTICESHIP SUBCOMMITTEE 
Joshua Berger Adams-Columbia Electric Cooperative
Curt Brockway Richland Electric Cooperative 
Lance Burke Dairyland Power Cooperative
Rob Dooley St. Croix Electroperative
Kris Dubiel Eau Claire Energy Cooperative
Kraig Gay Jump River Electric Cooperative 
Kevin Kurtzweil Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
Kendal Schmidt**   Chippewa Valley Technical College
Steve Wall Chippewa Valley Electric Cooperative
Kent Weigel Clark Electric Cooperative 
 
JT&S RULES SUBCOMMITTEE   
Ben Brede Barron Electric Cooperative
Curt Brockway   Richland Electric Cooperative
Cole Cary Vernon Electric Cooperative
Rob Dooley St. Croix Electric Cooperative
Steve Johnson Chippewa Valley Electric Cooperative
Ryan Kenealy Dairyland Power Cooperative
Kevin Kurtzweil Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
Duane Moore Adams-Columbia Electric Cooperative
Nate Nodolf Eau Claire Energy Cooperative
Jack Pardy Oconto Electric Cooperative
Brad Ristow Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services 
Mike Ruff Clark Electric Cooperative
Kendal Schmidt** Chippewa Valley Technical College 

 LEGISLATIVE & REGULATORY COMMITTEE     
Robin Banaszynski Oconto Electric Cooperative
Jennifer Beaudette Barron Electric Cooperative
Nate Boettcher Pierce Pepin Cooperative Services
Andrew Bourget Eau Claire Energy Cooperative 
Myron Brooks Jump River Electric Cooperative
Robert Cornell Washington Island Electric Cooperative
Dennis Frame Riverland Energy Cooperative 
Kristi Hanson Jackson Electric Cooperative
Lisa Kohn Taylor Electric Cooperative
Amy Martin   Richland Electric Cooperative
Kevin Meistad Chippewa Valley Electric Cooperative
Joe Metro Polk-Burnett Electric Cooperative
Mark Nelson East Central Energy
Richard Nemec Vernon Electric Cooperative
Monica Obrycki* Eau Claire Energy Cooperative
Joan Points Price Electric Cooperative
Shane Larson Rock Energy Cooperative
Sue Rombalski Central Wisconsin Electric Cooperative
Mark Santikko Bayfield Electric Cooperative
Jennifer Shilling Dairyland Power Cooperative
Chuck Simmons Scenic Rivers Energy Cooperative 
Jesse Singerhouse Dunn Energy Cooperative
Tim Stewart Clark Electric Cooperative 
Chris Tackmann Oakdale Electric Cooperative
John West Adams-Columbia Electric Cooperative 
Al Wilkie St. Croix Electric Cooperative 

*  WECA Board Appointed   ** Apprenticeship Representative



Associate Members 
 

AssociatePLUS - Proton Level Members 
 
Dykema 
201 Townsend St, Ste 900 
Lansing, MI 48933-1529 
(517) 374-9198 
www.dykema.com 
   

ELECTRON Level Members 
 
Boardman & Clark LLP 
1 S. Pinckney St, Suite 410 
P.O. Box 927 
Madison, WI 53701-0927 
(608) 257-9521 
www.boardmanclark.com 
   
Fredrikson & Byron, P.A. 
60 South 6th Street, Suite 1500 
Minneapolis, MN 55402-4400 
(612) 492-7514 
www.fredlaw.com 
   
Weld Riley, SC 
3624 Oakwood Hills Parkway 
Eau Claire, WI 54701-7754 
(715) 839-7786 
www.weldriley.com 
PROTON Level Members 
 
Highline Construc�on, Inc. 
16124 Old Lake Rd 
Paynesville, MN 56362-9402 
(320) 243-8101 
www.highlineconstruc�onmn.com 
   
 
 



Hooper Corpora�on 
6450 Pederson Crossing Rd 
DeForest, WI 53532-9212 
(608) 249-0451 
www.hoopercorp.com 
   
Irby U�li�es 
26 Transport Ct 
Madison, WI 53704-3235 
(612) 327-1790 
www.irbyu�li�es.com 
   
JJ Kane Auc�ons 
8616 84th St.  
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
(262) 308-2554 
www.jjkane.com 
   
J&R Underground, LLC 
916 Blake St 
Blanchardville, WI 53516-9716 
(608) 523-4290 
www.jrundergroundllc.com 
   
Na�onal Informa�on Solu�ons Coopera�ve, Inc. (NISC) 
One Innova�on Circle 
Lake Saint Louis, MO 63367-2649 
(866) 999-6472 
www.nisc.coop 
   
Power System Engineering, Inc. 
2424 Rimrock Road, Suite 300 
Madison, WI 53713-2701 
(866) 825-8895 
www.powersystem.org 
   
Purple Wave Auc�on 
825 Levee Dr 
Manhatan, KS 66502-5012 
(866) 608-9283 
www.purplewave.com 
   
 
 



Recloser Services 
7364 Bolton Way 
Inver Grove Heights, MN 55076-2337 
(507) 440-8372 
www.recloserservices.com 
   
Rheem Manufacturing Company 
209 Hillsboro Ct. 
O'Fallon, MO 63368-8091 
(636) 300-9529 
www.rheem.com 
   
Sunbelt-Solomon 
1922 S Mar�n Luther King Jr. Dr., 
Temple, TX, 76504-8611 
(800) 830-0251 
www.sunbeltsolomon.com 
   
T&R Electric Supply Company, Inc. 
PO Box 180 
Colman, SD 57017-0180 
(800) 843-7994 
www.t-r.com 
   
U�litra 
19435 W Capitol Drive 
Brookfield, WI 53045-2737 
(262) 305-7515 
www.u�litra.com 
   

NEUTRON Level Members 
 
A Star Electric Company 
15350 W. Na�onal Ave., Suite 217 
New Berlin, WI 53151-5158 
(847) 212-3866 
www.astareg.com 
   
American Energy Services, Inc. 
PO Box 295 
Richmond, MI 48062-0295 
(800) 458-5232 
www.americanenergy.us 



   
Bell Lumber & Pole Co. 
778 1st St NW 
New Brighton, MN 55112-3216 
(715) 418-3792 
www.blpole.com 
   
CCI Systems, Inc. 
105 Kent St 
Iron Mountain, MI 49801 
(920) 246-6801 
www.ccisystems.com 
   
Cli�onLarsonAllen, LLP 
1001 North Central Avenue, 
Suite 301 
Marshfield, WI 54449-2153 
(715) 387-6341 
www.claconnect.com 
   
Divergent Alliance 
2658 Corporate Pkwy 
Algonquin, IL 60102-2560 
(847) 531-0559 
www.divergentalliance.com 
   
Electrical Consultants, Inc. 
3521 Gabel Road 
Billings, MT 59102-7310 
(406) 259-9933 
www.eciusa.com 
   
ElectroTech, Inc. 
7101 Madison Avenue West 
Minneapolis, MN 55427-3601 
(800) 544-4288 
www.electrotech-inc.com 
   
Emerald Transformer 
2474 N Hwy 169 
Coffeyville, KS 67337-9231 
(800) 908-8800 
www.emeraldtransformer.com 
   



Evans, Lipka & Associates 
1920 SW 6th St, Ste B 
Lincoln, NE 68522-1748 
(402) 435-8282 
www.evans-lipka.com 
   
Fast Forward 
412 E 25th St, Suite C 
Kearney, NE 68847 
(308) 224-6513 
www.ff-ai.com 
   
Forster Electrical Engineering, Inc. 
550 N Burr Oak Ave 
Oregon, WI 53575-3103 
(608) 835-9009 
www.forstereng.com 
   
Karcz U�lity Services, LLC 
977 Yurek Rd 
Pulaski, WI 54162-9653 
(920) 822-2663 
www.karczu�lityservices.com 
   
Lake States Construc�on, LLC 
25172 Commercial Drive 
Grand Rapids, MN 55744-2134 
(218) 327-7202 
www.lakestatesconstruc�on.com 
   
Makovsky Brush Service 
1209 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 206 
Pren�ce, WI 54556-1065 
(715) 428-2121 
www.makovskybrushservice.com 
   
The Okonite Company 
16200 Hwy 7, Lower Level 
Minnetonka, MN 55345-3405 
(763) 432-3818 
www.okonite.com 
   
 



Osmose U�i�es Services, Inc. 
635 Highway 74 S 
Peachtree City, GA 30269-3003 
(612) 963-6867 
www.osmose.com 
   
Power Grid Products, Inc. 
2155 W. Belmont Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60618-6471 
(773) 248-5085 
www.powergridproducts.com 
   
STAR Energy Services, LLC 
6841 Power Ln SW 
Alexandria, MN 56308-4411 
(320) 762-1697 
www.star-energy.com 
   
Steigerwaldt Land Services, Inc. 
856 N 4th St 
Tomahawk, WI 54487-2127 
(715) 409-8558 
www.steigerwaldt.com 
   
TD&I Cable Maintenance 
748 Exchange Dr. 
Hudson, WI 54016-7917 
(715) 690-9220 
www.tdicable.com 
   
Terex U�li�es 
3140 - 15th Avenue SE 
Watertown, SD 57201-9017 
(605) 882-4000 
www.terex.com/u�li�es 
 


	NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING WISCONSIN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION
	ADP4C17.tmp
	2023-24




